U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
NATIONAL HIGHWAY SAFETY BUREAU
WASHINGTON. D.C. 20891

N REPLY REFER TO:

40-30

Mr. Lowell Dodge : NOV 18 1870

Director

The Center for Auto Safety
759 National Press Building
Washington, D.C. 20004

Dear Mr. Dodge:

On October 5, 1970, you submitted a petition for rulemaking on the subject
of flammability of vehicle interior materials. This petition noted

that a notice of proposed rulemaking on this subject had been issued on
December 31, 1969 (34 F.R. 2043L), proposing a horizontal burn rate test
with a L-inch-per-minute maximum. The petition suggested a vertical

test with essentially a self-extinguishment requirement.

The requirements suggested in the petition would be substantially more
stringent than those proposed in the December 31 notice. In our Judgment,
the situation with respect to the availability of materials is such that
it would not be feasible for industry to comply with such a requirement
within the effective date planned for our present rulemaking. No
stendard exists on flammability at present, and I believe that it is
important that one be issued with as short a leadtime as is reasonable,
in order to reduce the hazards from fires starting in vehicle interiors
from such sources as cigarettes and dropped matches. We also congider it
extremely important that these requirements not inhibit developments in
response to our Occupant Crash Protection rulemaking, and there is a
serious possibility that more stringent requirements than we have
Proposed may do so.

Our present plan, therefore, is to proceed with rulemsking on the basis
of the December 31 notice. At the same time, we will rroceed to study
intensively the feasibility of instituting still more stringent require-
ments with a later effective date. We are sponsoring continuing research
work in this area, and in addition are requiring the three Experimental
Safety Vehicle contractors to develop and utilize the greatest practicable
level of flame-resistant materials.
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Your petition thus presents a promising and useful approach for future
rulemaking, and I compliment you on the quantity and quality of work
that went into it. I am enclosing a copy of a letter that was sent

to several Congressmen in response to inquiries concerning your petition.
We appreciate your work in the field of motor vehicle safety.

Sincerely,

IR A

Charles H., Hartman
Acting Director

Enclosure
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CENTER FOR AUTO SAFETY

751 NATIONAL PRESS BUILDING | Post Office Box 7251

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20004 . Ben Franklin Station

(202) 638-0420 _ Washington, D.C. 20044

December 17, 1970
. ‘

Mr. Charles H. Hartman

Acting Director o

National Highway Safety Bureau

400 Seventh Street, S.W. :

Washington, D.C., : Re: 40-30

Dear d¥r. Hartman:

Thank you for your letter of November 18, 1970, stating
that the National Highway Safety Bureau intends to proceed
with a rulemaking on the basis of the December 31, 1969 notice
on flammabllity of interior materiale,

Ae a general comment, it is distressing to note that the
motor vehicle industry, after yeare of neglect in the area
of material flammabdility, will novw be requlred to meet no
more than a minimal safety ctandard. As previois exverience
has shown, the initlal safety standards in a previously unregulated
area have done little more than incorporate the current industry
bPractice and elimirate only the moesi {lagrant sbuses. The
laxity of the proposed standard is illustrated in this ecandid
comment Irom the chemical industry trade press, 0il, Paint and
Drug Renorter, November 16, 1870 at page 20:

Monthe zgo trade sourcee hoped that ihe
passage of this bBill(siec, standard 302)
would elevate flammabllity standarde for
automobile interiors to such a high level
that the demand for anltmony oxide from
interior manufacturers would double.

As 1t turns out, the standards in the bill(sic)
are nol extremely high. kost car interiors

ag they are nov being manufactured already
meet the standards, saysan antimony oxide
producer who wae discussing the situation

with Ford and Chrysler.

Roportedly cnlv gome thin szyre vinyle wiil
be affected.(emphasis gupplied)

As Mr, Ralph Nader =aid in his letter of QOctober 5, 197C to
Director Toms: C : '

The National Highway ZSafety Bureau, in ites proposed
federal motor safety standard on the Tlammablililtiy
of interior materials, ia decidely falling in its
misslon to insure the maximum feasible protection

to the motorinz publilc.
% # %*
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Federal Motor Vehlele Standards, according
to the 1966 auto safety law, are supposed
to advance the adoption of Increased safety levels,

The Center wishes to make the followlng specific comments
in response to your letter of November 18, 1970 and your letter
answering congressional Inguiries about the Center's proposed
standard. You state "We recognize, however, that the flame-
reaistance requirements should be strengthened as material
technology advances." Your 1970 standard will be compatable
with 1947 technology, the year the Federal Aviation Administration's
standard went into effect. Current technology already provides
plastics, textiles and foams that will pass the Center's provosed
standard. The argument advanced by industry that advanced flame
reslistant materials, such as the polyimidés and aromatic poly-
amldeg, are not commercially available in sufficient quantity
is self-serving; one of the reasongs that such materials have
noit been commercially avallable is because there has been no
demand for them., This lack of demand ia attributable to industry'a
fallure to take even the most minimal steps toward providing
the motoring public with flame resistant materials, However, lr,
R.C. Gazley, general manager of chemicals and polymers for Prin-
ceton Research, Inc., has predicted that the market in flame
retardant polymers and textlles will grow between 35 and 45 _
per cent yearly through 1975.(0il, Paint and Drug Reporter, September
28, 1970, pe 3.) ‘
It 1a correct that the Oklahoma Univeraltiy Research Institute
and the Illnois Institute of Technology Research Institute reports
recommended adoption of the 4 inch standard. Hewever, both
reports expressly recognized that the proposed standard establishes
only a minimal performance level and at best that its operational
effect will be limited to eliminating the most hazardous materiazls
now in use.(see OURI 4-57~58, 5-13; IITRI 58-59) Furthermore, with
the use of the horizontal test method, there is no guarnatee thati
even the most hazardous materials will be eliminated. For, many
of the interior materials will be used in a verilcal position(e.g.
seat backs, door panels) and.thus burn faster than if they were
used in a horizontal position.

The argument concerning the scarcity and expense of aniimony
oxlde 12 no longer valid. At the presgent time both foreign and
domestic antimony oxide is available in substantial quantity. ‘hile
the price of antlmony OYidemgas at an all tine hig% d?q%pg the
summer of 1970, the prild MHE since fallen 70 centiTahd Sccording
to the 0il, Paint and Druzx Reporter of November 16th and 30th, there
ia every indication that the price will continue to decrease.

Also, the need for antimony oxide as a flame retardant has been
decreased by the increased use of zinc borate, alone and in come-
bination with antlimony oxide.

Although the FAA's strenthened standard on flammablillty hasz
not been issued as yet, it i¥ important to note that most of the
materials being used in the Boeing 747 already meet the proposed
standard. One wonders why the NHSB fails to regquire equlvalent
protection for the many more millions of motorlsts exposed to the

hazard of vehicle interior fires. : :
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With respect,;bfybﬂffstété@éﬂiifﬁat the lmposition of a
strigent flammability standard may make it impossible for the

automobile industry %o meet NHSB'!a crash proteciion requlrement,
the Center asks for explicit documentation of that point. In

particular, would you offer evidence to show that padding materials
required to pass the proposed amendment to standard #201 would
be unable to pass the-Center?s-proppsed standard on flammability?

Since your reply of November 18, 1970, fails explicitly to
accept or reject the Center's vetition as required by CFR Title
49, Chapter V, Part 553, Section 553433 it thereby does not
breovide a basis for further action by the Center for Auto Safety,
Horeover, the NHSB failed to respond to the Center's request thst
the text of its petition be published in the Federal Regzister or
alternatively, that notice of receipt of the petition and a
sumpary of its contents together with a request for comments from
Anterested vartiea appear in the Federal Register. No such notice
has been published, but the Bureau-nag provided no regsons for its
apparent decision not to publish it. _ -

The baaic arguments of the Centér for-Auto Safety have not

been met. NHSB's proposed standard establishe, at best, a minimal
performance: level which.ig exceeded by the majority of materials

now in use in automobiles.;;Current‘techpoldgy provides materials
which will pass the_Center's.proposed standard. The critical need

for a strong standard is compellinérdbcumented in the enzlosed letters.
The Center for Auto Safety repeats its original request that its
petlition for rulemaking be accepted. - LT

- Justin Klein'
ST
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Jagon Mirabito
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Stephen Oesch
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